
Page 1 of 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

Meeting Date: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 
Time:  5:30 p.m. 
Location:  District Administration Building 
Remote Viewing Access:  https://bit.ly/3JWFwFp 
Interpretación al español estará disponible. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM  MICHAEL CONNORS 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Consent Items
Approval of Board Minutes
A. Minutes of School Board Meeting June 21, 2023

Human Resources Reports 
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular

Business Office Items 
A. Budget Status Report Ending May 31, 2023
B. Budget Status Report Ending June 30, 2023
C. Payroll and Vouchers Ending May 31, 2023
D. Payroll and Vouchers Ending June 30, 2023

K-12 Education Reports
A. Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Annual Report

4. Next Meeting Agenda
A. Technology Operations Update

5. Adjourn

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3JWFwFp&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C14cc516feea74408cfea08db773215c0%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638234829225534909%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WPaKgzwrhb9CpW9yY9Do5y%2FVB3%2F5n%2Bj1CPdNpDrXBUA%3D&reserved=0


 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
June 21, 2023 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Ron Mabry, Vice President of the Board; Diane Sundvik, Legislative 
Representative of the Board; Micah Valentine, Board Member; Gabe Galbraith, Board 
Member; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the Board. 
 
Excused: Michael Connors, President of the Board 
 
Cabinet Members: Dr. Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human 
Resources; Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Rob Phillips, 
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education; Alyssa St. Hilaire, Assistant 
Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive Director of Business 
Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations; Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Vice President Ron Mabry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 39 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to excuse President Mike Connors. 
 
 Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 Spring Sports and Activities 

 
Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, recognized high school spring 
sports, athletic directors, and coaches who highlighted this year’s regional and state 
accomplishments and introduced outstanding players. Lt. Col. Curt Wichers shared 
highlights from the district’s Air Force Junior ROTC program. The students earned a 
rating of “exceeds standards,” the highest rating possible. Lt. Col. Wichers introduced 
students who earned individual top-performer awards. 

 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Dottie Stevens thanked the Kennewick School District for the work that was done on 

behalf of the community to share facts about our recently passed educational programs 
and operations levy. Ms. Stevens donated to KSD to help with finances due to the levy 
not passing previously. 

 
 Cambri Longaker asked the Board to review discipline procedures at each school and 

look at making them more consistent across the district and how the district can be more 
inclusive instead of exclusive in discipline procedures. 

 
 Rama Devagupta shared that she wants to make the community aware of the impact of 

the double levy failure in our classrooms and to advocate for our students for academic 
excellence.  

 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
 Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular School Board Meeting May 24, 2023 
• Minutes of Special School Board Meeting June 2, 2023 
• Minutes of Semi-Annual School Board Retreat June 7, 2023 
• 2023-2024 School Board Meeting Calendar 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Summary of Kennewick Administrators Association (KAA) and Directors Group 

Off-Schedule Contract Changes 2022-2025 
• Resolution No. 8 2022-2023; Sale of Surplus Property 
• 2023-2024 READY & TEAM Read Agreements 
• Career and Technical Education 2023-2026 Four-Year District-Wide and Four-

Year Plans for Middle Schools, High Schools, and Tri-Tech Skills Center 
• 2000 Series Policy Updates 

 
 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported a strong finish to the 2022-23 school year with 

graduation ceremonies and a " Clap Out " event at Cottonwood Elementary. Dr. Pierce 
shared a letter from OSPI recognizing April Heiser and the whole transportation team for 
again earning exceptional results from the Washington State Patrol Annual Inspection. 

 
Board Member Gabe Galbraith reported that he attended graduation ceremonies and 
many end-of-the-year school events.                 

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending field days, graduation ceremonies, and 

graduation parties. 
 

Board Member Diane Sundvik reported attending graduations, speaking at the Phoenix 
High School graduation ceremony, and speaking with fourth graders at Fuerza 
Elementary School regarding elected officials. She attended the WSSDA District Area 11 
meeting, OSPI meeting online, the student art show, Hawthorne Volunteer Gathering, 
and the Washington Elementary Library Reading Celebration. Ms. Sundvik added that 
she participated in the Student Board Representative and Student Representative-Elect 
interviews. 
 
Board Member Ron Mabry reported attending the graduation ceremonies and giving 
kudos to the workers who tore down and set up for each graduation. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Public Hearing of Proposed 2023 – 2024 Budget 
 

Vice President Ron Mabry called the public hearing to order at 6:03 p.m. 
  

 Executive Director of Business Operations Vic Roberts presented the proposed district and 
General Fund budgets for 2023–2024. 

 
Mr. Roberts provided a description of the different funds. He discussed the levy, 
enrollment, and changes in staff and non-staff costs for the 2023-24 General Fund 
Budget. He reviewed total ESSER funding and the amount of ESSER funds received to 
date and remaining to be applied for the school year 2023-24. Mr. Roberts noted various 
program updates for 2023-24, along with a budget summary of all funds. He shared four-
year budget projections for all funds. 

 
Vice President Ron Mabry called for comments from the public. There were no 
comments.  
 
Mr. Mabry gave the last call for public comments. 
 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 

There were no other comments or questions, so Ron Mabry called for a motion to close the 
public hearing at 6:23 p.m. 

 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to adjourn the public hearing. 

 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 
 

  Roll call vote:  Mabry   Yes 
     Sundvik  Yes 
     Valentine  Yes 
     Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 Board discussion followed. 
 
 Resolution No. 9, 2022 – 2023: Adoption of Proposed 2023 – 2024 Budget 

 
Motion by Gabe Galbraith to accept Resolution No. 9, 2022-2023: Adoption of Proposed 
2023-2024 Budget as presented. 

      
 General Fund $320,002,599 

 Transportation Fund  $1,600,000 
 Capital Projects Fund $ 21,990,300 
 Debt Service Fund $ 17,335,000 
 Associated Student Body Fund  $ 3,309,268 

 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
  Roll call vote:  Mabry   Yes 
     Sundvik  Yes     
     Valentine  Yes 
     Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Course offerings, arts, extracurricular activities, and athletics 
  

Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, shared 2022-23 student survey 
results and examples of diverse course offerings. He compared middle and high school 
athletic participation data to the previous year, reviewed JROTC enrollment history, and 
reported on the participation data of middle and high school co-curricular activities.  
 
Mr. Scott introduced Ashwin Joshi, ATFA Founder/CEO and Southridge High School 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 

Student, who initiated the Southridge High School ATFA Financial Club/Chapter. 
Ashwin shared how he started the club and advocated for the need for financial literacy 
instruction in our high schools.  

 
 School Volunteer Data 
  

Rob Phillips, Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education, presented 2022-23 
volunteer data by school. He shared different volunteer opportunities, volunteer hours, 
and efforts to promote volunteering in schools. 
 
Dr. Pierce took a moment to recognize Rob Phillips for his leadership, dedication, and 
hard work and congratulated him on his retirement. 

 
 Get to Know Kennewick Schools Year-End Report 
  

Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public Relations, shared a 
recap of the seven informational sessions offered in the 2022-23 school year.  

  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Board Action on Southridge High School Gym Naming Recommendation 
 
Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, shared a recap and timeline of 
the Southridge High School Gym Naming process. 
 

 Motion by Diane Sundvik to accept the committee's recommendation that the Southridge 
High Gym remains the Southridge High Gym and that the student cheering section be 
named the Jo Jo Conn Student Section as presented. 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Appointment of 2023-24 Student Board Representative and Representative-Elect 
  
 Dr. Pierce presented a recommendation to the Board to appoint Mallory Dupaquier as the 

2023-24 Student Board Representative and Annie Maltos as the 2023-24 Student Board 
Representative-Elect. 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 Motion by Gabe Galbraith to appoint Mallory Dupaquier as 2023-24 Student Board 

Representative and Annie Maltos as 2023-24 Student Board Representative-Elect. 
 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 Policy No. 2140, INSTRUCTION: Guidance and Counseling 
  

Dr. Pierce reported that she reviewed the 2000 Policies and shared that those that were 
amended to update legal references and formatting were approved as part of the consent 
agenda. She then presented two amended policies with more substantive changes. 

  
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve/accept Policy No. 2140, INSTRUCTION: Guidance 

and Counseling for first and second reading. 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 Policy No. 2330, INSTRUCTION: Academic Freedom 
  
 Motion by Gabe Galbraith to approve/accept Policy No. 2330, INSTRUCTION: Academic 

Freedom as presented for first and second reading. 
 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 



Minutes 
June 21, 2023 
Page 7 
 
 
The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Consent Only – ALE Annual Reports 
 

OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  July 26, 2023  
 
 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date
Kayla Sullins KaHS Teacher - HS Program Need 0.4 2023-24
Melisa Hernandez Eastgate Teacher - Elem Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Kevin Lambert Tri Tech Teacher - HS Program Need 1.0 2023-24

Cala Truitt KaHS MTSS Lrng. Facilitator Program Need 0.8
Contingent on 

Certification
Audra Waite Edison Multi Ling. Facilitator Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Mike Chavez Park MS Teacher - MS Pacheco move 1.0 2023-24
Rashad Lathan HHHMS  Teacher - MS Mather move 1.0 2023-24

Julia Demarjian Washington Teacher - Elem Spec Srvcs Stapleton resignation 1.0
Contingent on 

Certification
America Fonseca Eastgate Teacher - Elem  Barnett resignation 1.0 2023-24
Ryan Blake Park MS Teacher - MS Baker move 1.0 2023-24
Rogelio Guizar SrHS  Teacher - HS Carnevale move 1.0 2023-24
Williams Brincken SrHS Teacher - HS Gonzalez move 1.0 2023-24
Megan Yates Canyon View Teacher - Elem Lemon resignation 1.0 2023-24
Aaron Santos Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Fangman resignation 1.0 2023-24
Jessica Nunez Cascade Teacher - Elem Kirk retirement 1.0 2023-24

Brittney Peres Edison Teacher - Elem Spec Srvcs Loomis move 1.0
Contingent on 

Certification
Michelle Crandall Cascade Teacher - Elem Steinman move 1.0 2023-24
Tanya Kennedy HHHMS Asst. Principal Hutchison move 1.0 Eff. 7/24/23
Julie Guthrie K-12 (District) Nurse Alleman resignation 1.0 2023-24
Elizabeth Ramos de la 
Cruz Fuerza Teacher - Elem Arroyo move 1.0 2023-24
Brandie Tapia Chinook Teacher - MS Spec Srvcs Gallaher move 1.0 2023-24
Brisa Vasquez KeHS Multi Ling. Facilitator Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Brian Arroyo Park MS Teacher - MS Foerste move 1.0 2023-24

DATE:  Wednesday, July 26, 2023

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE
REPLACEMENT

7/26/2023 Page 1



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Lluliana Lopez Fuerza Teacher - Elem Cancino Valdovinos move 1.0 2023-24
Hayden Burris KaHS Teacher HS Spec Srvcs James' resignation 1.0 2023-24

Emily Engebretson Amistad Teacher - Elem Spec Srvcs Requesting LOA (1st) 1.0
Eff. appr. 
11/30/23

Denisse Mora Amistad Teacher - Elem Reed LOA (2nd) 1.0 NON 2023-24
Kayla Hickman KeHS Teacher - HS Woodford KEA assignment 1.0 NON 2023-24
Rachel Lind Ridge View Teacher - Elem Cossio LOA (1st) 1.0 NON 2023-24
Ignacio Torres Fuerza Teacher - Elem Rodriguez LOA (1st) 1.0 NON 2023-24
Eleanor Ard Westgate Teacher - Elem Romm LOA (1st) 1.0 NON 2023-24
Kristin Kirk Cascade Teacher - Elem 1.0 6/23/2023
Heidi Weisert-Peatow Hawthorne Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/31/2023
Kim Lembeck Washington Principal 1.0 7/18/2072
Jannette Salisbury SrHS Teacher/Inst Coach HS 1.0 8/31/2023
Christina Fangman Amon Creek Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2023
Brienne Leach Amistad Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2023
Amanda Collins Canyon View Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/31/2023
Kaelyn Mendoza Canyon View Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/31/2023
Gina Cutts Tri Tech Teacher - HS 1.0 8/20/2023
Lisa Fann Vista Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2023
Kim Murphy DHMS Teacher - MS 1.0 8/31/2023
Amy Evans Chinook  Teacher - MS 1.0 8/31/2023
Rylie Jundt Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Spec Srvcs 1.0 8/20/2023
Tricia Anderson Teaching & Learning Vocational Director 1.0 7/31/2023
Teryl Wills Chinook Teacher - MS 1.0 8/14/2023
Chris Clem SrHS Asst. Principal 1.0 7/31/2023

Tammy Hutchison HHHMS to A Creek
MS Asst. Principal to Elem 
Asst. Principal Massey move 1.0 7/1/2023

Yessica Cancino 
Valdovinos Fuerza Teacher - Elem Mejia move 1.0 2023-24
Holly Clark Cottonwood Teacher - Elem Hamel move 1.0 2023-24
Danielle Craigen Park to Amon Creek Teacher - MS to Elem Melone move 1.0 2023-24

MaryAnn Gallaher Chinook to Southgate
Teacher - MS to Elem Spec 
Srvcs Flores move 1.0 2023-24

Lauren Garrett Southgate Teacher - Elem Delancy .5 resignation .50 to 1.0 2023-24

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

7/26/2023 Page 2



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Megan Hagihara Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Marty resignation 1.0 2023-24
Elizabeth Capetillo Chinook MTSS Lrng. Facilitator Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Cherie Foerste Park to KeHS Teacher - MS to HS Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Ramiro Gonzalez SrHS to Park MS Teacher - HS to MS Arreguin move 1.0 2023-24
Elida Rodriguez SrHS Counselor Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Trine Tippett HHHMS to KeHS Teacher - MS to HS Clemmens retirement 1.0 2023-24
Rosalinda Garcia-
Rodriguez Eastgate Teacher - Elem Spradling move 1.0 2023-24
Xiomara McEachen Fuerza Teacher - Elem Oneill move/prog. Need 1.0 2023-24
Sulema Pacheco Park Teacher - MS Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Baylee Gutierrez Hawthorne Teacher - Elem Whittaker move 1.0 2023-24
Gabriela Epperson Fuerza to Eastgate Asst. Princ. to Bil. Lit. Int. Berna retirement 1.0 2023-24

Karla Flores Southgate to SrHS
Teacher - Elem  Sp Srvcs 
to HS Spec Srvcs Petersen resignation 1.0 2023-24

Langdon Holton Amistad MTSS Lrng. Facilitator Leach move 1.0 2023-24
Gerardo Camargo Eastgate Bil MTSS Lrng Facilitator Program Need 1.0 2023-24
Coriene Schorer Fed Progs + KeHS Instr. Coach/HS Teacher Scrimsher move add'l .4 .6 to 1.0 2023-24
Kris Mars Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Hagihara move 1.0 2023-24
Chantal Mejia Fuerza Teacher - Elem Torres move 1.0 2023-24
Jan Walters Park Teacher - MS Craigen move 1.0 2023-24
Jason Martin C View to A Creek Teacher - Elem Leach resignation 1.0 2023-24

  

7/26/2023 Page 3



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Adilene Toscano K-12 K-12 Education Secretary Replaces Karina Wilkinson 8.0 7/5/2023

Andrew Vander Pas KDC/Kamiakin Custodian/Swing Replaces Jesse Martinez 8.0 6/28/2023

Naihada Mustafic Park Cook Replaces Valerie Meeker 6.0 8/30/2023

Kim Craythorn Kamiakin Secretary 5.0 6/14/2023

Jacob Swanson Canyon View Custodian/Swing 8.0 6/27/2023

Rachel Loomis Legacy Para/SS/Resource Room 7.0 8/31/2023

Amy Munoz Amistad Para/FP/LAP 6.0 7/19/2023

Amanda Grandeen Ridge View Elementary Secretary 6.0 8/4/2023

Cynthia Michel Lincoln Para/FP/BE/Bilingual 6.25 7/21/2023

Jordan Evans Communications Communications Coordinator 8.0 7/21/2023

Kaela Reeder
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/FP/BE/LAP 6.0 6/14/2023

Lydia Russert Transportation Bus Attendant 6.25 7/31/2023

RETURN FROM LOA

RESIGNATION

TERMINATION

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: July 26, 2023

LAYOFF

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RETIREMENT

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

RESIGNED FROM LOA

NEW POSITONS

7/26/2023 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, July 26 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS Clayton Homme Southridge HS Assistant Football Replaces Scott Stiles   

 Cooper Homme Southridge HS Assistant Football Replaces Micah Lampkin  
2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Micah Lampkn SOUTHRIDGE HS Assistant Football Non-Renewal 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Asia Borisch Southridge HS Assistant Wrestling Non-Renewal 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Vernon Vogtman Kennewick High Head Boys Wrestling Resigned 2022-2023 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2022-2023 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 































































 
 

Page 1 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 

DATE:  July 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent 

RE:  Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Annual Report 

The Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) is public education, available to all public school districts and 
public charter schools in Washington state, where some or all of the instruction is delivered outside of a 
regular classroom schedule. The intent of ALE is to ensure that students have educational opportunities 
designed to meet their individualized needs. ALE follows all public education requirements and the 
requirements specified in ALE WACs.  Mid-Columbia Partnership (MCP) and Endeavor High School 
operate under ALE.  

According to state statute, each district offering alternative learning experience courses or course work 
must provide an annual report to the Board, which includes the following information:  

a) Documentation of alternative learning experience student headcount and full-time equivalent 
enrollment claimed for basic education funding; 

b) Identification of the overall ratio of certificated instructional staff to full-time equivalent 
students enrolled in each alternative learning experience program; and, 

c) A description of how the program supports the district's or charter school's overall goals and 
objectives for student academic achievement. 

 
Additionally, Board Policy 2414 states that the Board will approve the ratio of certificated instructional 
staff to full-time equivalent students enrolled in Alternative Learning Experience Programs and courses, 
and that an end-of-year report will be provided to the Board, containing the following:  

a) The Alternative Learning Experience Program student headcount and full-time equivalent 
enrollment claimed for basic education funding;  

b) A description of how certificated and classified staff are assigned program management and 
instructional responsibilities that maximize student learning; including the ratio of certificated 
staff to full-time equivalent students;  

c) A description of how the written student learning plan is developed and student performance 
supervised and evaluated by certificated staff;  

d) A description of how the Alternative Learning Experience Program supports the District’s overall 
goals for academic achievement; and,  

e) Results of any self-evaluations conducted pursuant to WAC 392-121-182(7). 
 

Recommendation:  

The Board approve the attached annual ALE Report for MCP and Endeavor High School as presented.  
 



 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
Mid-Columbia Parent Partnership (MCP)  

Annual Report 
June 2023 

 

Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Full -Time Equivalent (FTE) Count  
Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

KDGN 26.30 25.80 25.30 26.30 26.30 25.80 25.80 26.30 25.80 
1st 32.41 33.02 32.52 32.52 32.52 34.52 34.52 36.02 38.02 
2nd 31.49 32.29 30.99 32.99 32.80 30.80 30.80 33.20 33.20 
3rd 47.27 46.02 46.82 45.82 46.82 46.90 47.90 48.50 48.60 
4th 37.07 36.67 35.37 35.37 36.18 36.18 37.78 40.90 40.90 
5th 28.30 31.90 37.20 36.20 36.20 35.20 33.40 35.40 35.40 
6th 51.70 52.20 52.87 54.87 54.87 56.87 56.87 61.54 63.54 
7th 46.11 46.11 46.11 48.62 47.91 47.71 53.21 54.45 54.25 
8th 63.28 70.83 70.83 70.42 76.42 74.42 74.28 75.28 80.10 
9th 20.99 18.99 17.39 18.99 18.99 18.99 17.99 17.99 17.99 

10th 14.70 14.40 15.80 15.20 15.20 17.40 17.40 17.40 18.40 
11th 11.53 11.73 13.13 13.13 13.13 13.13 11.73 11.73 11.73 
12th 9.35 9.55 9.55 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.95 9.95 9.95 
Total 420.50 429.51 433.88 440.18 447.09 447.67 451.63 468.66 477.88 
  
Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Head Count  

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

KDGN 29 29 29 30 30 29 29 30 29 
1st 36 37 34 36 36 38 38 39 41 
2nd 36 38 35 37 37 35 35 39 39 
3rd 54 53 55 54 55 56 57 58 59 
4th 41 41 39 39 40 40 42 45 45 
5th 34 39 44 43 43 42 40 42 42 
6th 57 58 59 62 62 63 63 68 70 
7th 51 51 51 54 53 53 59 61 61 
8th 69 77 78 76 82 80 80 81 86 
9th 24 22 20 22 22 22 21 21 21 

10th 18 15 19 17 17 19 19 19 20 
11th 19 21 22 21 21 21 20 20 20 
12th 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 17 
Total 485 499 503 509 516 516 521 541 550 

 
 
 



 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
 
 
Staffing of the Program (FTE range indicates additional non-continuing contracts) 

Name Title FTE Hired Specialty 
Barnes, Sara K-12 Teacher 1.00 8/26/14 Computers, ELA 
Bennett, Karen K-12 Teacher 0.80 9/01/15 Math 
Canada, Brooke K-12 Teacher 1.00 8/27/04 Elementary 
Child, Isabel K-12 Teacher 0.70 8/29/17 Elementary 
Davis, Tanya K-12 Counselor 0.50 10/18/21 Counselor 
Darling, Tammy K-12 Teacher 0.26 9/01/15 Destination Imagination/Foods/Nutrition 
DeFord, Susan K-12 Teacher 0.86 08/30/16 Elementary 
DeForest, Carrie K-12 Principal 1.00 9/01/09 Principal 
Durham, Kylee K-12 Teacher 0.52 08/27/13 Reading 
Freeze, Cody K-12 Teacher 1.00 6/21/17 Online Teacher 
Hatke, Travis K-12 Assistant Principal 0.40 8/1/21 Assistant Principal 
Howland, Sandra k-12 Teacher  1.00 8/22/03 Online Teacher 
Nelson, Julie K-12 Teacher 0.33 

 
Spanish 

Lee, Heather K-12 Teacher 0.53 05/08/17 PE 
Perry Karla K-12 Counselor 0.60 8/17/11 Counselor 
Powell, Katie K-12 Teacher 0.54  Art 
Rheinschmidt, Julie K-12 Teacher 0.85 8/12/04 Math, Science 
Sagan, Megan K-12 Teacher 0.42 09/01/15 Science 
Schneider, Melissa K-12 Teacher 1.00 9/9/05 Online Teacher 
Williams, Holli K-12 Teacher 0.48 09/03/19 ELA 
Williams, Michelle K-12 Teacher 1.00 9/1/15 History 

 

Certificated Student-to-Teacher FTE Ratio   
Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May 

Teaching 
Staff FTE 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 13.39 

Student FTE 420.50 429.51 433.88 440.18 447.09 447.67 451.63 468.66 477.88 
Student-Teacher 
Ratio 

31.40 32.07  32.40  32.87  33.38  33.43  33.72   35.00 35.68 

 
• Actual average class student/teacher ratio is approximately 16:1 in the partnership program. 

The actual average class student/teacher ratio is approximately 22:1 in the online program.   
 
 
Staffing 
Certified teachers are responsible for instruction, development of student learning plans, 
completion of direct weekly contact with students, and evaluation of student progress. Classified 
staff support students in the classrooms and supervise students outside of class during and before 
school, lunch, and recess. There is one full-time secretary, a two-hour secretary who is shared 
with another building, a five-hour secretary in the office, and a six-hour secretary in the 
library.     



 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
Student Learning Plans and Student Performance 
Student Learning Plans are developed for each student at the time of enrollment by an MCP 
teacher and the parent. Learning Plans are aligned with district and state standards and modified 
to meet individual needs of the student. A student’s academic performance is evaluated monthly 
by a combination of assessments, teacher evaluation of work, and information provided by the 
parent. Teachers meet with each student and parent monthly to communicate and discuss 
progress. An Intervention Plan is developed by the teacher for a student not making satisfactory 
progress.     

Program Supports the Districts Goals for Student Achievement 
MCP offers learning options to students who: 

• are homeschooled for personal beliefs or religious reasons 
• are unable to attend the traditional setting due to health 
• struggle in the traditional setting due to autism or anxiety 
• need a flexible learning schedule due to sports, dance, music, or other interests 
• struggle in the traditional setting due to academics 
• are either academically advanced or academically low and want to tailor education to the 

learning style of the student. 
 
Online Program Overview 
MCP’s online program consists of 5 full-time teachers with approximately 135 students total. In 
all grade levels, students take the 4 core classes (math, social studies, science, and language arts) 
and at least one elective (PE, art). Teachers provide daily office hours, weekly social-emotional 
learning instruction and virtual support. They assign weekly assignments and assess student 
learning through the Flexpoint curriculum. Student activities are provisioned on a weekly basis, 
giving students the ability to work at their own pace and timeframe within the given 
week. Monthly reviews and weekly check-ins are monitored and conducted by the student’s core 
teacher.   
 
Program Self-Evaluation 
MCP conducts a staff and parent survey annually.  Changes and improvements are based on the 
results of the surveys.  
 
FlexPoint Education Cloud 
The MCP online program uses FlexPoint Education Cloud as the online digital curriculum. 
Course content includes practical written lessons and assessments, interactive games and 
quizzes, and video and audio clips. FlexPoint is an internationally recognized, full-service 
Kindergarten through 12th grade online education service provider that is included on the list of 
OSPI providers. The Instructional Materials Committee had not yet been established when 
FlexPoint was adopted. The district will be reviewing online curriculum providers in the 2024-25 
school year. The new curriculum review policy and procedure will be utilized when reviewing 
and selecting and/or renewing online curriculum providers in the 2024-25 school year.  
 



 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
Out-of-District Student FTE   

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

Benton City 7.70 7.70  7.70 7.70 7.70  7.70 7.70  7.20   8.20 
Burbank 3.00 3.00 3.00   3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00 3.00  3.00  
Finley 4.00 4.00  3.00 5.00  5.00   2.00  2.00 2.00  2.00 
Grandview 2.00 2.00 1.50  1.50 1.50  1.50  1.50  1.50 1.50 
Pasco 45.33 45.13 45.13  46.93   44.93  44.93  47.98 49.38   50.38 
Prosser 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.50 0.50 
Richland 30.23 29.23  29.40 29.40  29.40 31.20  35.92  38.72  39.72  
Total 92.26 91.06 89.73 93.53 91.53 90.33 98.10 102.30 105.30 

 
Out-of-District Student Head Count   

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
Benton City 9 9 9  9 9   9 9  8  9  
Burbank 3 3  3 3  3  3  3  3  3 
Finley 4 4  4 5 5   3  3  3  3 
Grandview 2 2  2 2  2  2  2  2  2 
Pasco 53 53 53  55  53  53  57  59 60  
Prosser 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 
Richland 31 30  30 30 30  32  39 43  44  
Total 102 101 101 104 102 102 113 119 122 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
Endeavor High School ALE Program  

Annual Report 
June 2023 

 

Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Full -Time Equivalent (FTE) Count 
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
9th 9.75 16.75 17.75 20.75 23.75 24.25 24.75 30.00 37.5 
10th 28.00 38.75 43.75 40.50 37.75 26.75 39.75 47.25 49.00 
11th 30.00 50.25 48.25 42.75 45.00 40.75 50.25 51.25 51.75 
12th 48.75 67.00 68.75 64.75 56.00 42.25 45.75 44.00 38.50 
Total 116.50 172.75 178.50 168.75 162.50 134.00 160.50 172.50 176.75 

  

Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Head Count 
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
9th 10 16 18 21 24 25 26 31 41 
10th 28 39 46 42 41 30 43 55 58 
11th 31 52 51 47 51 43 55 57 61 
12th 49 68 71 69 65 50 51 55 50 
Total 118 175 186 179 181 148 175 198 210 

 

Staffing of the Program  
Name Title FTE Hired Specialty 
Coleman, Ronny Teacher 1.0 08-30-16 Science, PE, Health 
Downing, Ryan Teacher 1.0  06-22-16 Math, PE 
Downing, Jamie  Teacher 1.0  08-03-21 English, PE 
Gregg, Betti Teacher 1.0  10-05-21 Social Studies, English, Music, Computer Apps, PE 
McInturff, Julie Teacher 1.0  08-30-23 Computer Apps, PE, Health, CCP, Music 
Mezger, Vernica Teacher 1.0  10-05-21 Social Studies, English, Music, PE 
Partlow, Krystal Teacher 1.0  10-06-21 Social Studies, English, Music, Computer Apps, PE, 

Health 
White, Sharon Secretary 4 hr. Day 09-03-19 Secretarial and Clerical Duties 
Chavez, Nora Secretary 4 hr. Day 08-19-21 Secretarial and Clerical Duties 

 

Certificated Student-to-Teacher FTE Ratio  
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May 
Teaching 
Staff FTE 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 

Student FTE  
116.5 172.75 178.5 168.75 162.5 134 160.5 172.5 176.75 

Student-Teacher 
Ratio 16.64 24.67 25.50 24.10 23.20 19.14 22.92 24.64 25.25 

• Yearly average class student/teacher ratio is 23:1.   



 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
Superintendent  
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-6550 | traci.pierce@ksd.org | ksd.org 

 
Student Learning Plan and Student Performance 
Individual Student Learning Plans are developed for each student at the time of enrollment after 
a transcript analysis has been completed. Enrollment is available to both part-time and full-time 
students. Enrollment is also open to students with disabilities, although students are screened to 
determine if this program is an appropriate placement. A student’s academic performance is 
evaluated by a combination of computer and teacher-scored assessments. Weekly contact 
between students and teachers is recorded; this allows teachers to become aware of potential 
problems with student performance. Teachers conduct a monthly performance evaluation for 
each student based on effort, family circumstances and progress through the course. 
 
Program supports the Districts Goals for Student Achievement 
The Off-Campus Learning Program offers high quality learning opportunities to students who:  
• need access to learning outside of the traditional school day 
• are unable to attend school due to medical issues 
• wish to complete their high school credits in their home environment 
• need a flexible learning schedule.   
 
Program Self-Evaluation 
Program self-evaluation has been conducted to identify procedures necessary for compliance 
with WAC 392-121-182 outlining Alternative Learning Experience requirements. This program 
evaluation is completed on a yearly basis. Changes have been implemented to document weekly 
contacts and monthly evaluations. Improvements have been made to the Student Learning Plan 
form to increase student and parent understanding of the program. 
 

Out-of-District Student FTE 
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

Burbank - - - - - - - - - 
Richland - - 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 6.00 5.00 
Pasco - - 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 

Total - - 3.00 3.00 4.00 4.00 5.00 7.00 6.00 
 
 
 
Out-of-District Student Head Count  

 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 
Burbank - - - - - - - - - 
Richland - - 2 2 3 3 4 6 6 
Pasco - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Total - - 3 3 4 4 5 7 7 

 

 


	Agenda School Board Meeting 07 26 2023
	CONSENT ITEMS
	Minutes School Board Meeting 06 21 2023
	Personnel Action Items - Certificated
	Personnel Action Items - Classified
	Personnel Action Items - Extracurricular
	Budget Status Report Ending May 31, 2023
	Budget Status Report Ending June 30, 2023
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending May 31, 2023
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending June 30, 2023
	Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) Annual Report



